
 

10405 Merrill Road 

P.O. Box 157 

Hamburg, Ml 48139 

(810) 231-1000 

www.hamburg.mi.us 

 
Supervisor Pat Hohl Clerk Mike Dolan Treasurer Jason Negri  Trustees Bill Hahn, Patricia Hughes, Chuck Menzies, Cindy Michniewicz 

 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM 

Hamburg Township Hall Board Room 

 
MINUTES 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
Priebe called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

Introduction of the new Planning and Zoning Director, David Rohr to the ZBA Members. 

 
 

 
ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD 

Members PRESENT: 

Brian lgnatowski 

Craig Masserant 

Jason Negri 

Joyce Priebe, Chair 

William Rill 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

Correspondence - Mark Marjoros letter per easement issue from last month's case 

 
Treasurer Negri stated that he appreciated the follow up letter and said that it addressed his concerns about the 

road easement. 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Approval motion made by Treasurer Negri, supported by Rill, to approve Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda for 

tonight as presented. 

 
Voice Vote: Ayes: (5) 

 

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

http://www.hamburg.mi.us/


CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

 
A call was made with no response. 

 
 
 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

 
1. ZBA 2023-003 

Owner: Mounir and Tamra Haurani 

Location: Vacant parcel on Baseview Boulevard (nearest address to the south 2602 Baseview 

Boulevard) 

Parcel ID: 4715-31-401-021 

Request: Variance application to permit the construction of an accessory structure within the required 

front yard and wetlands setbacks per Sections 36-215 and 36-293. 

 
Chair Priebe invited the applicant to address the members at the podium. Mrs. Haurani stated that she 

had three key points to provide to the members for their support her variance to fill in 0.01wetlands on 

this vacant parcel to build her garage. The proposed garage structure is well under 800 sq ft allowed by 

our ordinance. The proposed road setbacks also meet our zoning standards. She stated that the 

Livingston County records erroneously stated that the wetlands on this parcel had been filled in 1989. 

The neighbors who had originally owned this parcel, and who have lived in the area for 40 years were 

present to attest to this fact. She mentioned they had sent in a letter to this fact as well. Chair Priebe 

stated that they had received it. Mrs. Haurani also wanted to correct the ZBA statement of the size of 

the wetland proposed to be filled of .1 to .01 acres of wetlands. The impact of the wetland fill would be 

minimal and that the impact on the environment is minimal. She let the members know that EGLE 

approved a maximum of 30 cubic yards of fill in the wetlands to build their accessory structure. The 

proposal would only use 28 cubic yards of fill for every 24 months. She said that building this accessory 

structure would improve the aesthetic quality of the neighborhood, replacing clutter outside a small 

shed. She continued that her neighbors have expressed their support of this project by letters. 

 
Chair Priebe opened the meeting to Amy Steffens, the Planning and Zoning Director. Amy read her 

report giving the historical background on this case. Amy clarified that we are hearing this case because 

this project does not meet the zoning setback standards, but the applicant is making this case sound like 

it is a wetland fill variance. It is not. The structure does not meet the SO-foot setback from a regulated 

wetland or the 25-foot setback from the Baseview road extension. This hearing is for a setback variance 

request. The Township removed the requirement to review wetland filling requests if the applicant 

secured all state and federal wetland permits. The applicant is seeking to building into the regulated 

wetlands. 

 
Amy continued to read her staff report as to how this variance does or doesn't meet all seven standards 

of review. Amy stated the issue here is determining what setback requirements to enforce and what 

wetland setback would be reasonable for this unique parcel and situation. She stated that Section 36- 

293 of the Hamburg Township Ordinance recognizes that wetlands play a significant role in flood 

mitigation and the ordinance is set up to protect these wetlands. She reminded the ZBA members that 

EGLE and the Township look at two different things in relation to filling in the wetlands. EGLE tries to 

minimize the project to minimize its impact on wetlands while encouraging as little fill as possible. They 



do not have a setback from wetlands, but the Township does. The Township looks at wetlands as a 

natural feature to protect because it is unique to our community, especial in the Special Hazardous 

Flood Plain Area. The staff feels that this project could be proposed with a smaller footprint, closer to 

the road ways to protect the natural wetland features that are unique to the township. 

 
Chair Priebe asked for clarification why there is only one street setback for the proposed accessory 

structure while there are two streets on this corner lot. Amy explained that accessory structures on a 

corner lot only needs to meet one street front yard setback, so that is why the side yard has only 10 feet 

setback. She opened the public hearing to the audience, but no one came to the podium. She reminded 

the members that two email correspondences were received in support of this ZBA case. One was from 

David Renken and the other was from Stan Liebaert. She then closed the public hearing. 

 
She asked the members if they had any questions or comments. Treasurer Negi said he weighed all of 

the facts of this case and does not feel it meets all of the standards. He stated that we have review 

standards for a reason. He said sometimes there are circumstances that require minimum relief, but he 

stated that he does not see any compelling reason to divert from the standards in this case. Member 

lgnatowski asked for clarification if Amy's drawing would substitute an alteration for this project? Negri said she 

used the drawing to show that the architectural design could have been made smaller for the ZBA to consider this 

variance request. Negri explained that they do not negotiate with applicants but only decide on the cases as they 

appear before them. Chair Priebe mentioned in past cases, that applicants have asked for their ZBA cases to be 

tabled so they can propose something that would be allowable. Negri stated that an accessory structure with a 

smaller footprint would still have a significant encroachment issue regarding the wetlands. 

 
Member Masserant asked her if her drawn example for a smaller accessory structure didn't require any fill for its 

construction. She assured him that it did not. Member Rill asked the applicant if she would consider a change in 

the footprint of the accessory structure. Mrs. Haurani stated that she had interpreted the zoning ordinance 

regarding WFR and water body as the same and thought that the 15 feet front yard setback applied to 

this case. Amy and the ZBA members explained that it would have been allowable on their home parcel 

across the street since it is adjacent to the body of water in the rear. 

 
The architect came up to the podium, explaining that the dimensions of the parcel as being 4,000 square 

feet. He stated that this structure is 16% of that sq. footage. He expressed that the safety at this street 

corner is the largest concern in his mind. The wetlands cover over 5 acres of land to the north of this 

vacant parcel. Most of the parcel is very flat. He stated that the neighboring lots have accessory 

structures built in similar locations on their out lots to store recreational equipment. He set up the 

location of this proposed structure to match the precedence of the other nearby structures. He stated 

that they tried to stay as far away from the rear lot line as possible, trying to meet the SO feet setback 

from wetlands and using a minimal amount of fill. 

 
Chair Priebe asked Amy if the ordinance requires a SO-foot setback, then would this regulation make this 

parcel unbuildable? Amy stated that not every lot is buildable, and that is why the variance process 

exists and why we have standards. The ZBA board can offer some variance relief if they deem it 

appropriate. The architect referred to Section 36-275 for the creation and alteration of waterbodies 

stating that this project would only minimally impact the wetlands. 

 
Chair Priebe turned to the ZBA members for further discussion. Member Masserant explained that he did 

not feel comfortable approving the filling in the wetlands since every lot is not buildable, no matter how much we 

I 



want them to be. Member lgnatowski stated that we are not trying to decide if this lot is buildable or not. He 

agreed that not every lot is buildable in the Township. Member Rill asked Amy when our ordinance changed 

regarding the filling of a wetland. Amy explained that such a proposed project would have to go through the 

Special Use Process with the Planning Commission prior to 2019. That was taken out to allow some fill into a 

wetland to create a pond. The applicant would still be required to get a state permit to dig and create this new 

wetland on their parcel. Removing this portion of our ordinance was to do away with a hinderance to people who 

wanted to create a pond, or a boardwalk through the wetlands. Such projects would be allowed by EGLE while not 

hindering the free flow of the wetlands. There was nothing for the ZBA to review regarding such projects. The 

wetland setback used to be 25 feet, but it was changed to 50 feet in 1980 or 1990. Amy asked Chair Priebe who 

could not recollect this change. Member Rill stated that he felt that we should allow this proposed project since it 

is minimal, since it meets the neighboring lots to the west, which are setback 25 feet from the wetlands. 

 
Member Masserant asked if the wetland setback was required by the FEMA NFIP flood plain requirements. Amy 

said no, they are two totally different requirements. Member Rill stated he believed that this accessory structure 

meets a 25-foot setback, and there should be something that could be done to allow for this variance. 

 
The architect wanted to present a few more things before the ZBA voted on this variance. He asked for 

clarification about being SO feet from a body of water. Amy and the ZBA members explained that this was a 

natural features wetland variance not a OHM (Ordinary High Water Mark) waterbody variance. The applicant 

came up to the podium to ask if the ZBA would consider allowing a variance to build a smaller structure here. 

Treasurer Negri said that there was no structure that could be built SO feet from the wetland on this parcel, with a 

safety at the corner. He explained that even Amy's example had no wetland setback and he said he would need 

something between the 0- and SO-foot setback. Amy and the ZBA members let the applicant know that if they 

wanted to propose something different and smaller, than we could table this case. The architect started to talk at 

his seat and Chair Priebe asked him to come to the podium to speak. He said that there is a balance between an 

accessory structure and a primary structure. He stated that the members should use precedence between this 

parcel and the neighboring western properties that have accessory structures in the same area as they are 

proposing. He again went on to stated that wetlands have aquatic creatures moving around or muck that make 

you sink to your hips when you walk through them. This parcel has none of those features. The architect and the 

applicant never requested to table this case. 

 
Denial motion was made by Member Masserant, supported by Member lgnatowski, to deny 

variance applicant ZBA 23-003 at 2602 Baseview Boulevard (TIO 15-31-401-021) to permit the 

construction of an accessory structure within the required 25-foot front yard setback from 

Baseview Boulevard and encroaching into a regulated wetland (25-foot front yard setback 

required, Section 36-215; SO-foot setback from a regulated wetland required, Section 36-293). 

 

The variances do not meet variance standards 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, or 7 of Section 36-137 of the 

Hamburg Township Zoning Ordinance, and no practical difficulty exists on the subject site when 

strict compliance with the Zoning Ordinance standards is applied, as discussed at the meeting 

this evening, and as presented in this staff report. 
 

Voice Vote: Ayes: (4) Members Masserant, lgnatowski, Priebe, and Negri 

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED 

Nayes: {1) Member Rill 

 
 
 
 
 

2. ZBA 2023-011 



Owner: Robert and Jacqueline Sifton 

Location: 8064 Kildeer 

Parcel ID: 4715-13-101-069 

Request: Variance application to permit the construction of a 720-squre foot pole barn in the required 

front yard setback of a corner lot per Section 36-215 and 36-293. 

 
Chair Priebe opened the hearing up to the applicant. He stated that the variance request was to build a pole barn 

to store his equipment, such as a pontoon boat, rototillers, and log splitter. New neighbors say that such items are 

eyesore. She asked him to explain where his home is about his proposal. Mr. Sifton explained it is on an adjacent 

lot to the southeast. He let her know that these two parcels were combined via the zoning department. 

 
Chair Priebe invited David Rohr, our new Planning and Zoning Director to read through his staff report, regarding 

the standards of review. Member Masserant asked if the shed would need to come down before the pole barn 

was built. Amy and David said no. 

 
Treasurer Negri asked David if the pole barn could be built on this parcel without a variance. David said if it were 

proposed at a smaller size, he could. Chair Priebe asked for clarification about the undeveloped road easements 

on both sides of the parcel. The applicant said it was a walking easement for the neighborhood. She then opened 

the public meeting to the Public Hearing. There were no respondents, so she closed the public hearing portion of 

the meeting. 

 
Member Masserant asked the applicant if his house is the southeast of this vacant parcel. Mr. Sifton said yes, it 

was off Kildeer. Much discussion was had regarding the setback requirements for accessory structures on vacant 

corner lots, as well as if the proposed accessory structure would fit in the buildable area of this parcel. The front 

yard setback to the existing road needs to meet the setbacks of the primary structure, which is 25 feet in the WFR 

district. This variance is to build the pole barn 10 feet from the main street that is being used currently. 

 
Member Masserant stated that just because a resident wants to build a structure a certain way on their parcel is 

not reason enough to approve it through a variance, especially if they have room enough to build it according to 

our standards of our ordinance. Member lgnatowski reminded the members that the reason for the variance was 

to keep the present garden to its same size and location, and to minimalize the impact of the northern neighbor's 

view. Treasurer Negi stated that the current buildable setbacks are based on three undeveloped road easements 

that no one uses. He said he feels that this applicant might deserve some relief from our zoning ordinance. 

 
Denial motion was made by Treasurer Negri, seconded by member lgnatowski, to deny variance 

application ZBA 23-011 Hubbard Dr. (TID 15-13-101-059) for a 10-foot variance request from the 

required 25-foot front yard setback, per Section 36-215 (5) because the variance does not meet 

variance standards one (1), two (2), or seven (7) of Section 36-137 of the Hamburg Township Zoning 

Ordinance, and no practical difficulty exists on the subject site when strict compliance with the Zoning 

Ordinance standards as discussed at tonight's meeting and as presented in the staff report. 

 
The applicant asked for some clarification regarding the meaning of this denial. The members said that 

the pole barn needs to be built to all the zoning standard regulations. Chair Priebe let the applicant 

know that he can come into the Zoning Department and David can assist him in understanding what 

those requirements would be. 

 

 
Voice Vote: Ayes: (5) 

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



3. ZBA 2023-012 

Owner: Christopher Withorn 

Location: 8695 Beach Ave 

Parcel ID: 4715-13-301-062 

Request: Variance application to permit the construction of a second-story addition within the required 

side, front, and ordinary high water mark setbacks per Section 36-186. 

 

 
Amy stated that she prepared a memo, that this variance would not be needed if the proposed project is built as 

shown. As Amy looked over the construction building plans, she noticed that he is not adding an additional second 

story but only pitching the structure (flat roof to a pitched roof). He is only attic space, and according to our 

ordinance definitions, this is not considered a story or even a½ story. He is only adding trusses, which can be 

given through the issuance of a land use permit. We will issue him a full refund. He had asked if he could still 

request a second story addition over the garage that is over the property line. Amy said that she let him know that 

proposal would be denied since it would not meet our current zoning ordinance. 

 

 
APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Approval motion made by Treasurer Negri, seconded by Member Masserant, to approve the June 14, 2023, ZBA 

Meeting minutes as presented. 

 
Voice Vote: Ayes: (S) 

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

 

Amy gave an update regarding the 10190 Imus Rd -after the fact variance request in March 2023. It was regarding 

a boat house without the proper land use and building permits. This project is entirely in the flood plain. She 

reminded the ZBA members that they approved it under the township attorney's legal advice. Mr. Becker had 

brought in the EGLE Floodplain Permit that was issued for this project today. Now the applicant can provide use 

with a land use application and an elevation certificate that is required for any development in the floodplain in 

our township. Once we issue them the official land use permit, then the applicant will need to go to Livingston 

County Building Department for an after the fact building permit. 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Approval motion to adjourn at 8:16 pm was made by Treasurer Negri, seconded by Member lgnatowski. 

 
Voice Vote: Ayes: (5) 

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

 
Respectfully subttted, 

 
Lisa Perschke 



Planning/Zoning Coordinator & Recording Secretary 

 
 

 
Amy Steffens and David Rohr 

 
Planning & Zoning Directors 

 
 

 
The minutes were approved as corrected: Joyce Priebe  

 

 


